
      PRESCOTT CITY COUNCIL 
      WORKSHOP 
      TUESDAY, FEBRUARY 1, 2011 
      PRESCOTT, ARIZONA 
 
MINUTES OF THE PRESCOTT CITY COUNCIL WORKSHOP held on February 1, 2011 
in the COUNCIL CHAMBERS located at 201 SOUTH CORTEZ, Prescott, Arizona.  
  
  CALL TO ORDER 
  
 Mayor Kuykendall called the Workshop to order at 3:00 p.m. 
 
 PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE Councilman Hanna 
 
 Councilman Hanna led the Council and audience in the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
  ROLL CALL:    
 
  Present:      Absent: 
  

Mayor Kuykendall     Councilwoman Lopas 
*Councilman Blair    
Councilman Hanna    
Councilman Lamerson   
Councilwoman Linn 
Councilwoman Suttles 
 
* via phone  

 

WORKSHOP 
 

I. PRESENTATIONS 
 
 A. Introduction of new businesses. 

  
Dyan Jones of the Prescott Chamber of Commerce introduced three new 
businesses: 
 
Josette Medina, owner, Green Monkey Resale Boutique, said that she 
opened the boutique in 2009 in Marler’s Square. It began as a children’s 
resale store and it had evolved into women’s, men’s and children’s 
clothing, specializing in top quality brands at a low cost. The phone 
number was 928-710-4044.    
 
Jackie Cramer, fashion coordinator for an LA Designer named Carol 
Anderson, said she had a business with a company called CAbi for nine 



Prescott City Council  
Joint Workshop/Special Meeting – February 1, 2011                                           Page 2 
 

years. She said that Ms. Anderson did two exclusive lines of women’s 
clothes per year. The new spring line just came out that day. Her phone 
number was 928 776-7731.    
 
Wendy Haley said that she had Mountain Mortgage for 24 years and 
had recently joined Suburban Mortgage about four months ago. She said 
that they were located at 222 West Gurley in the Prescott Business 
Center. Her phone number was 710-1668.   
    

B. Presentation of Prescott area tourism video. 
 

Mr. Kapin, Public Affairs Director, presented the latest video titled Live, 
Work and Play in Prescott. He said that it was done for the Tourism and 
Economic Development Departments. He thanked Bruce Dorn, a 
nationally renowned photographer, Forrest Sandefer and Dave Veatch for 
their photography/video help and Cadu Medina for his excellent editing. 
He also thanked the businesses who opened their doors for them.  

 
Mayor Kuykendall said that it was a great piece and thanked him, as did 
Councilwoman Linn. She asked him how long the video was. Mr. Kapin 
said that it was 2 minutes and 37 seconds, which was a prelude to a 
longer documentary piece, which Toni Tennille had narrated. He would 
bring that to Council in a month or so.  

 
Councilwoman Suttles said that for as long as she had been in Prescott, 
she realized that there were a lot of places that she had not been. After 
watching the video, she wondered why she had not been to those places. 
She told Mr. Kapin that he did a great job. 

  
C. Presentation by Prescott Police Department on recent successes of the 

Police Department Explorer Post. 
 

Chief Kabbel gave a short presentation on the recent successes of the 
Explorer Post. He noted that the Explorer Post participated in a 
competition in Chandler from January 14-16, 2011. There were 700-800 
Explorers who participated in the competition from 60 law enforcement 
agencies around the country. He said that their Post participated in 14 
events and came back with a First Place trophy in Incident Command 
Systems and a Second Place trophy in a Five Person Hostage Rescue.  
He invited the Explorers in to show their trophies. He then introduced 
Explorer Advisor Patrick Mora. 

  
Explorer Advisor Patrick Mora said that there were 7 out of 21 Explorers 
present. He said that there were 75 sworn officers and 21 Explorers in the 
Prescott Police Department; last year there were six to seven Explorers. 
He noted that he was proud of the members for promoting themselves 



Prescott City Council  
Joint Workshop/Special Meeting – February 1, 2011                                           Page 3 
 

and living with integrity. He also noted that there were currently six 
advisors. They were a non-profit organization with a golf tournament in 
May, which was how they raised money to go to the competition. 
 
He said that seven of the Explorers went to the competition. They upped 
their training to four hours each Monday in January to prepare 
themselves. He introduced their advisor Jessica Smith and the Explorers 
who were present – Nathaniel Trujillo, Josh Dillenbeck, David Pindzola, 
Ryan Schuler, Michael Sischka, Seth Ezell and Sam Ezell. The 
introductions were followed by a video.   

 
Mr. Mora invited Council and audience to the meetings on Monday nights 
from 6-8 p.m.   

 
Councilman Hanna said that they did a good job. He noted that they 
always put on a good golf tournament to raise money. He said that he had 
$100 for the Explorers and challenged the other Council members and 
public to support the group. He said that every little bit they could donate 
would help keep the local people local. He said that it was great to see 
Officer Mora and a lot of guys who grew up in Prescott and were now 
officers in Prescott. Councilwoman Linn offered $100 as did Councilman 
Blair.   

 
D. Presentation by John Olson of the Elks Opera House Foundation re 

capital campaign. 
 

Mr. Olsen, Chairman of the Elks Opera House, Prescott, thanked the City 
for its support in the completion of the Opera House to its original 
grandeur.  

  
He said that if they had not had the expertise of Mr. Fenech the past few 
months they could not have pulled it off. Mr. Olsen also recognized the 
Board, because they had put in a lot of time; Elisabeth Ruffner, Cathy 
Church, Maxine Dillahunty, Marilyn Henze, Gail Mangham, Debra 
Matthews, Russell Parker, Barbara Watkins, Paul Wulff and Ralph 
Weiger. There had been a few changes in the board membership recently 
and those were the current members.   

  
He noted that they had some ambitious plans. He said that they had an 
agreement with the City so that they could continue to work together. The 
job was not finished and it would not be until the Foundation was able to 
take the Elks Opera House off the City’s hands. He said that they put 
together a presentation of their ambitions about eight years ago. They 
said that they would want to not only renovate the Opera House, but to 
own the building to use it for the continued financial well being of the 
endeavor. 



Prescott City Council  
Joint Workshop/Special Meeting – February 1, 2011                                           Page 4 
 
 
  

He noted that they had resolved to follow their original plans made upon 
incorporation in 2002 to purchase the Elks building and set up an 
endowment to ensure the future of the entire project. The building owners 
had verbally agreed to sell their portion of the structure at a price in terms 
to be negotiated. He said that the figure would include the 24 space 
parking lot on Marina Street. The Board had agreed to set a goal of 
$3 million to accomplish both goals. It was anticipated that income from 
rentals in the building would support the operation of the theater and the 
endowment income would offset maintenance costs for both the theater 
and the building. He said that the Foundation Committee was meeting 
with the Service Corp of Retired Executives (SCORE) to create a 
business plan for the management of the building.  
 
Mr. Olsen said that the City of Prescott was working on management 
plans to operate the theater and Elisabeth Ruffner would continue as 
Chairman of the Capital Campaign B. The committee would develop 
public relations, marketing, writing and a variety of fund raising events and 
programs to mount the campaign. He said that opportunities for 
investment in the building purchase in the endowment would be illustrated 
in brochures and newsletters through the programs presented to service 
clubs and other individuals seeking ways to support one of the largest 
investments in the arts and culture of the region.  

 
He said that it was a big job. They got the restoration done through the 
generosity of the Kieckhefer and James Foundations. He said that they 
would work as hard as they could for as long as they needed to.  

 
Mayor Kuykendall thanked him for the presentation. 

 
E. Presentation by Yavapai County Development Services on County’s 

Comprehensive Plan. 
 

Elise Link, Planning Manager for Yavapai County, introduced Steve Mock, 
Develop Services Director. She said that she wanted to introduce their 
process for the upcoming revision to the County’s Comprehensive Plan 
and give them some background and ways to get involved, as well as 
what they were going to be doing in the next few months. She gave a 
PowerPoint presentation (attached hereto as Exhibit A) that included: 

 
 PRESENTATION OVERVIEW 

 
 A COMPREHENSIVE PLAN IS: 
 



Prescott City Council  
Joint Workshop/Special Meeting – February 1, 2011                                           Page 5 
 

She said that the County plan was adopted in 2003 which 
superseded the last one done in 1975. 

 
 GENERAL PLAN 2003 

 
 WHY? 

 
She noted that their ultimate goal was to define a unified, long 
range vision for sustainable growth and development by integrating 
social, physical, economic and environmental aspects of land use.  

 
 HOW? 

 
 WAYS TO BE INVOLVED 

 
 NEXT STEPS 

 
She then invited everyone to participate in one way or another and 
said that their common goal was economic vitality and quality of life 
for all of the residents of Yavapai County. 

 
Mayor Kuykendall asked if they saw the plan moving along as the 
County increased the Board or prior to the five supervisors being in 
place. Ms. Link said that their plan process was anticipated to take 
18 months. She said that they hoped to have a final draft to the 
Board of Supervisors no later than August of 2012, which would 
precede the redistricting. 

 
Mayor Kuykendall asked if they still looked at what was happening 
within the municipalities when they took the boundaries out on the 
map. Ms. Link said absolutely and that was a big part of why they 
were doing the meetings. She said that it was nice to coordinate 
things that were regional. 

 
Mayor Kuykendall said that Ms. Link had the benefit of the input, 
like the road changes to 89A, to work within their plan. Ms. Link 
said that was exactly what they were doing. They would be working 
with all of the stakeholders. Mr. Mock said that even though the 
plan was only applicable to the unincorporated areas, they 
encouraged all of Yavapai County to participate. 

 
Mayor Kuykendall noted that Central Yavapai Municipal Planning 
Organization (CYMPO) had some aggressive plans for the future 
regarding road alignments. He asked if those would be considered 
in their plans. Ms. Link said yes and they would have committees 
that had representatives from those different organizations.  



Prescott City Council  
Joint Workshop/Special Meeting – February 1, 2011                                           Page 6 
 

Councilwoman Suttles said that regarding CYMPO, they had short 
and long range plans and their short range plans were not done 
yet. They were in the process of changing dates due to funding. 
Ms. Link said that the 2006 CYMPO Study by Lima Associates had 
been used extensively as a research document.   

 
F. Presentation re First Things First program. 

 
Claire Louge, Community Outreach Liaison of the Yavapai Region, asked 
if anyone was familiar with First Things First. She explained that it was a 
statewide organization that partnered with parents, families and 
communities to make sure that all children in Arizona entered school 
healthy and ready to succeed in school and in life. She then showed a 
PowerPoint Presentation that included: 

 
 LEARNING BEGINS AT BIRTH 

 
 BUILDING A SOLID FOUNDATION FOR ALL YOUNG CHILDREN 

 
 HISTORY 

  
.   She noted that the money came from separate funding than the 

State General Fund and .80 cents per pack on cigarettes helped 
the program. She also noted that local people got to decide where 
local funds went. 

 
 FULFILLING NEEDS STATEWIDE 

 
Statewide, First Things First had funded over $206 million to early 
childhood. 

 
 THIS YEAR  

 
 EMERGENCY FOOD BOXES 

 
 PARENTING EDUCATION CLASSES 

 
 20 CHILD CARE CENTERS 

 
 CHILD CARE SCHOLARSHIPS 

 
 HOME VISTING PROGRAMS 

 
 LITTLE KIDS BOOK 

 
 



Prescott City Council  
Joint Workshop/Special Meeting – February 1, 2011                                           Page 7 
 

 BE A CHAMPION FOR CHILDREN 
 

She noted that they could be contacted at www.azftf.gov. 
 

Councilwoman Linn said that one of the reasons she was glad that 
Ms. Louge was there was that First Things First had gone under 
the radar until the election and then people started asking what 
was being done. She thought it was important to help working 
Moms find childcare. She noted that it was difficult to get the 
community to apply.  She encouraged anyone with a need to go to 
their website.  

 
G. Presentation by Kathleen Murphy re Big Brothers/Big Sisters of Central 

Yavapai County. 
 

Ms. Murphy, President and Chief Executive Officer of Yavapai Big 
Brothers Big Sisters covering Yavapai County and Sedona, said that they 
served children in 61 schools with over 1000 children in their organization. 
She then showed a short video. 

 
Ms. Murphy noted that children from single parent homes were two to 
three times more likely to get in trouble with the law. She said that she 
was asked to speak because she sent a letter to the Council talking about 
the outcomes they had with their organization. 

 
She gave the Council a hand out and said that they had done research 
with the juvenile court system for seven years and each year they found 
the same outcome. The same children who were two to three times more 
likely to be arrested each year were half as likely as all other children in 
the community to be arrested, if in the program.   

 
Ms. Murphy said that her nephew, Steve Mock, was a single father and 
his daughter was now 25. Mr. Mock said that he was a beneficiary of the 
program. His daughter entered into Big Brothers Big Sisters when she 
was roughly 4.5 years old. At that time in Prescott, there was not a lot of 
child care. He said that the experience of having a female in his 
daughter’s life made a big difference in the way she turned out. 

 
Ms. Murphy said the best way to help was to be a Big. She said that her 
Little Sister just turned 17 and they had been together 4.5 years. She also 
mentioned that Big Brothers Big Sisters was celebrating their 40th 
Anniversary this year.  

 
Councilwoman Linn noted that Bowl for Kids was coming up. She said 
that she and Councilwoman Suttles would have a team, as did the City 
Clerk, Liz Burke. 

http://www.azftf.gov/


Prescott City Council  
Joint Workshop/Special Meeting – February 1, 2011                                           Page 8 
 

Ms. Murphy said that their website was azbigs.org. 
 

Mayor Kuykendall asked how young the children were in the program.  
Ms. Murphy said five years old and sometimes four and one half. She also 
mentioned that Mrs. Kuykendall was looking into becoming a Big Sister. 
Councilwoman Linn said that her second Little was a five year old. She 
said that she had a tough situation and Councilwoman Linn felt good that 
she could touch her life for about two hours a week. 

 
H. Presentation by Carol Friedman of the Yavapai Symphony Guild re the 

Music Memory Concert. 
 

Carol Friedman said that it was one of her favorite days of the year 
because she got to say thank you for Acker funds to the Guild for their 
Music Memory Program. She brought tickets for the Council to go and 
cheer the kids on. She said that they were going to have the largest 
indoor classical music concert ever in the State of Arizona. They had 
confirmed reservations of 4825 students and teachers from Yavapai 
County who were coming to hear the Prescott POPS play their music.  

 
She showed the booklet that each of the children would receive that told 
them about the people they would be seeing on stage. She said that it 
also gave them a word list, concert manners, how an orchestra was set 
up and told them about the composers and the country of their origin.  
She said that they could not thank the City enough because each year it 
was harder to make the program happen. She noted that the booklet was 
geared for the third through fifth graders. She said that the event was 
Tuesday morning, March 1st 10:00 a.m. at Tim’s Toyota Center. 

 
I. Presentation re Arizona Wildfire Academy by Tony Sciacca. 

 
Mr. Sciacca gave the Council a hand out. He noted that in 2003 there was 
the Rodeo-Chediski Fire, and from that came the Arizona Wildfire and 
Incident Management Academy which started out with about ten classes. 
Last year there were about 1,000 in attendance from 24 states and three 
countries. He said that they had the reputation of being one of the better 
academies in the country and that would not happen without the support 
of the Fire Department and City Council. He said that they were recruiting 
business statewide to host different events that required wild land fire and 
incident management training. 

 
He noted that they were about training wild land firefighters in everything 
from the basic wild land fire skills through incident management. He said 
that the Southwest Incident Management Teams came to Prescott three 
year ago. He said that after looking through the facilities and the City, they 
brought 400 plus attendees for two years in a row. He said that it was an 



Prescott City Council  
Joint Workshop/Special Meeting – February 1, 2011                                           Page 9 
 

academy of national significance that was being recognized at all levels of 
incident management. 

  
 J. Presentation by Catherine Moody re the Fifth Edition of the Trails and 

Recreation Opportunities Map. 
 

Ms. Moody said that the City had just printed their fifth edition of the Trails 
and Recreation map. She said that a modified version of the map started 
back in 2004. Noting that she was the Geographic Information System 
(GIS) Coordinator for the City, she said that they recently went to the 
Prescott Bicycle Advisory Club who suggested they do a community map 
involvement project. It would be collaboration between businesses and 
the City to put the map out. Over the years it had evolved into the trails 
and outdoor recreation map. 

 
She noted that they had just printed 20,000 copies of the map and they 
were going fast. The printing costs were paid for completely by the 
business sponsors. Their contribution got them an ad on the back of the 
map. The businesses also got an icon on the map site so they could mark 
their location. 

 
She said that the City’s portion of collaboration was employee time, as 
she was the Project Manager. She coordinated the businesses to get the 
printing fund set up. She said that she also produced the map and 
graphics that went to the printer and she worked with Chris Hosking who 
was the Trails Specialist who Global Positioning System (GPS’d) all of the 
trails that had not been GPS’d. They worked together with the Forest 
Service to decide what would go on the map outside of their City 
jurisdiction.  

 
She noted that quite a few things had changed on that printing. She said 
that it had previously been 18” x 24”; it had now expanded to the 
Southeast and West to show core trail systems that were associated with 
Prescott.  
 
She said that Lynx Lake used to be an inset map at a different scale. Now 
it was at the same scale of the map and had a greater coverage south of 
the area where the trail system tied back in to Walker Road. An example 
of a recommended ride was the Salida Gulch Trail, trail number 5. She 
said that it was a new trail that had been constructed. 
 
She noted that they added a section that included the Spruce Mountain 
Loop and the Groom Creek Horse Camp Loops.  They worked with Jason 
Williams from the Forest Service who was their Trails Coordinator to 
determine what would be shown on the map.  
 



Prescott City Council  
Joint Workshop/Special Meeting – February 1, 2011                                           Page 10 
 

Ms. Moody said that in the Southwest corner, they were able to include 
the Whiskey Off-Road trail route. She said that it would be beneficial to 
the people who spent the prior months training for that ride. She noted 
that the additional information extended to trail types. They showed trails 
from easy to difficult. They also showed hiking only trails and trails where 
hikers might interact with All Terrain Vehicles (ATV’s) or dirt bikes, 
because they were motorized trails. 
 
She mentioned that there were road routes that were paved routes and 
road routes that were dirt routes. Due to the increase in print size, she 
said that they reworked the back side of the map to go for a three tiered 
fold. That enabled them to highlight some of the City trails more closely.  
They were able to take some of the rockier areas, like the Dells, with 
tighter trail networks and profile them in a close-up view so that the trails 
were clearer. 
 
She said that they also noted distance to the trailhead and whether there 
was a parking fee at the trailhead, a brief description of the trail and an 
elevation profile. They profiled the Willow Dells area and the Watson Dells 
trails which were accessed off of Granite Dells Road and the Peavine 
Trail. Ms. Moody said that they were also able to profile the Vista Park 
Trail System which was part of Prescott Lakes Area. 
 
She noted that the map had evolved from a narrow, target audience to all 
users of the trails. They wanted to bring in information on equestrian 
parking, trail etiquette and when not to go out on the trails.  
 
She said that they were also able to move the Downtown Map to the 
backside so that when it was folded, the Downtown Map was a useable 
map in folded form. 

 
Mayor Kuykendall thanked Ms. Moody and Mr. Hosking. He asked if they 
had a waiting list for sponsors. Ms. Moody said that in December of 2004, 
there were 10 sponsors and now they were up to 24 sponsors so they 
could print 20,000 copies. She said that they had interest from people who 
wanted to sponsor the map.   

 
Councilwoman Linn noted that the City had 35 miles of trails and one trails 
person. She said that Chris Hosking was a visionary and that he managed 
hundreds of people every week to build and maintain the trails. She also 
pointed out that Joe Baynes and Mr. Hosking had to bring the wood out in 
the lake to get it to the location shown on the cover of the map.  She said 
that the Willow Loop Trail was great.  

 
Nigel Reynolds, Prescott, said that he was there to thank Cat Moody and 
Chris Hosking for their wonderful map. He said that the map would be 



Prescott City Council  
Joint Workshop/Special Meeting – February 1, 2011                                           Page 11 
 

helpful to locals and tourists. He said that he knew from recent surveys 
that trails and outdoor activities were high on the list of attractions for 
tourists. 
 
Mr. Reynolds noted that it was one small part about what the City needed 
to do to encourage tourism and increase sales tax and bed tax.  He said 
that when their salaries were up for review, the positive impact of the map 
should not be forgotten.   

 
Kelly Schwartz, President of Back Country Horseman, said that they were 
a 501C3 dedicated to keeping public lands open to recreational use of 
pack and saddle stock. She said that they had two major problems with 
the map. It identified the Cayuse Equestrian Trailhead in Granite Basin as 
a parking area for all, claiming that it was merely horse friendly.  She said 
that she had the 1992 Decision Notice from the Prescott National Forest 
for Granite Basin Recreation Area, when the Cayuse Trailhead was 
identified as an equestrian only trailhead with parking for 25 vehicles with 
horse trailers, no other vehicle use. She noted that parking was a major 
problem for them due to the cars in the lot. She said that there were four 
near-by lots for non-equestrian use. She asked that the “equestrian only” 
use of the Cayuse Trailhead be respected and enforced. 
 
She said that the equine industry had a $389 million economic impact in 
the Yavapai County. There were over 12,000 horses and 96% of 
equestrians were trail riders.  
 
She noted that their other issue with the map was that virtually all non-
motorized trails in the Bradshaw Ranger district were labeled “bike” trails, 
rather than “multi-use” non-motorized trails shared with hikers, horseback 
riders and bikes. She said that it should also include the trails in and 
around the Groom Creek Horse Camp, the only Horse Camp in the 
Prescott National Forest. She noted that equestrians already had 
problems with confrontational bikers, screaming profanities at horseback 
riders and claiming that they were not supposed to be on the trails. The 
map would make things worse, since it clearly implied that all of the trails 
were “bike only” trails.  
 
She said that people had been killed and injured on shared use trails. She 
noted that tourism for Prescott was $195 million business, the local equine 
industry $389 million. She asked where it got them if they increased 
tourism by 50 percent due to biking and then drove away 50 percent of 
the equestrians. 

 
Mayor Kuykendall said that they were off the subject and were not going 
any further. They were supposed to present a map and it was not a 
chance to editorialize.  



Prescott City Council  
Joint Workshop/Special Meeting – February 1, 2011                                           Page 12 
 
  

Councilwoman Linn noted that there was no sign that said she could not 
park at the Cayuse trailhead. She suggested that Ms. Schwartz talk to 
Prescott National Forest.  

  
K.   Presentation on Construction Manager at Risk process to be used on the 

Airport Wastewater Treatment Plant Expansion project. 
 

Mr. Nietupski noted that in 2010, the Wastewater Treatment Master Plan 
was completed for the Airport facility and the Sundog facility. The plan 
identified serious deficiencies in process equipment and treatment 
capacity at both facilities and also identified immediate needs at both 
locations.   
 
In December of 2010, Council concluded a utility rate setting process to 
provide for the needed water and wastewater system improvements to 
insure that the City’s utility system was in compliance with regulatory 
requirements for public health and safety.   
 
He said that Public Works was currently proceeding with procurement of 
professional services for engineering for the Airport Wastewater 
Treatment Facility Improvements and Expansion. That was qualifications 
based, competitive process which was ongoing. He noted that they were 
focusing on the major facility improvements. 
 
He said that Mr. Burkeen would give a PowerPoint presentation (attached 
hereto as Exhibit B) that would go over the different types of deliveries 
that were available to the City for public facilities construction.  

 
Tim Burkeen, Program Manager in Public Works, gave a PowerPoint 
presentation about Alternative Project Delivery Methods, specifically with 
respect to the Construction Manager at Risk Method and why it was the 
most appropriate method to use for the upcoming Airport Wastewater 
Treatment Plan Project.  His presentation covered the following: 

 
 ALTERNATIVE PROJECT DELIVERY METHODS 

 
 DEFINITIONS 

 
 DESIGN-BID-BUILD   

 
 CONSTRUCTION-MANAGER-AT-RISK  (CMAR) 

 
 CMAR PROJECT PROCESS PROJECT COST DEVELOPMENT 

 
 CONTENTS OF A GMP (Guaranteed Maximum Price) 



Prescott City Council  
Joint Workshop/Special Meeting – February 1, 2011                                           Page 13 
 

 
 CONTENTS OF A GMP 

 
 CMAR – MANAGER-AT-RISK BENEFITS 

  
 CMAR – OWNER SUCCESS ELEMENTS 

 
 CMAR SELECTION AND CONTRACT AWARD 

 
 WHY IS CMAR THE RIGHT DELIVERY METHOD FOR THE 

AIRPORT WRF PHASE 1 EXPANSION? 
 

 DESIGN-BID-BUILD VS. CMAR 
 

 ARIZONA APDM PROJECTS 
 

 OTHER SIMILAR ARIZONA SMAR PROJECTS 
 

Councilwoman Suttles asked if the City had done other CMAR 
projects.  Mr. Burkeen said that the Elks Opera House, Library and 
the Central Garage were CMAR projects. Councilwoman Suttles 
noted that it seemed to have worked well for the City. She said that 
for something that large, dollar wise, she was comfortable going 
with it. She realized it would be a bit more work. She asked how 
much the plant would cost. Mr. Burkeen said that the entire, four 
year project was budgeted for $41.6 million. He noted that as they 
refined the work, the costs would be better defined. 

 
Councilman Lamerson noted that the CMAR’s had fewer change 
orders and fewer problems.  

 
Councilman Hanna said that CMAR was the only way to go. Using 
DBB was like going to a doctor that graduated at the bottom of his 
class. He said that it was a way to control who was working in the 
area and whether they were local or not. The point system allowed 
that. 

 
Councilwoman Linn said that she liked three things about CMAR: 
quality, using local expertise and the additional communication and 
relationship building.  She felt that they would have fewer lawsuits.  

 
Councilman Blair said that he was adamant that CMAR was the 
only way to go. He said that they had bypassed some of their 
quality people in the community when they did not use CMAR. He 
said that he wanted to make sure their plate was wide open and 
they were not taking someone because they were not qualified.   



Prescott City Council  
Joint Workshop/Special Meeting – February 1, 2011                                           Page 14 
 

He thought it might be wise to have the Mayor select a Council 
person to sit in the process. 

 
Mr. Nietupski said that they were very sensitive to the local 
economy and contractors that were qualified to work on local 
projects. He said that the Council;s input on the selection 
committee would be valuable.  

 
Mayor Kuykendall asked if the City Garage was a CMAR project.  
Mr. Nietupski said that he did not thing it was, but it was completed 
within budget.  

 
Mr.Fenech said that he liked the weekly meetings with the architect 
for the Central Garage project. He said that the meetings were very 
detailed and they went over every aspect of design and 
construction. He said that there was some excavation that went 
beyond what was planned, but because they were able to value 
engineer, it did not matter. 

 
Mayor Kuykendall asked if the project would be so complicated that 
it would rule out the locals. Mr. Nietupski noted that there were 
local firms that were qualified to work on the project. 

 
Mr. Lloyd noted that he did not want the Council to go away 
thinking that the local preference for this type could be something 
that did not have legal implications. There were serious legal 
implications about preferring local contractors because that could 
involve interstate contractors which could give rise to some legal 
liabilities.  

 
Mr. Nietupski said that there were criteria that they must follow.  
The State statutes set down the process that they must follow. 
Local participation could not be the primary criteria consideration in 
the award of a CMAR. 

                 
II. ADJOURNMENT 
 
 The Prescott City Council recessed into a Special Meeting at 4:45 p.m. 
 

SPECIAL MEETING 
1. Call to Order 
 

Mayor Kuykendall called the Prescott City Council Special Meeting to order at 
4:45 p.m. 

 



Prescott City Council  
Joint Workshop/Special Meeting – February 1, 2011                                           Page 15 
 
2. Authorization for staff to effectuate the necessary repairs for the North Prescott 

Event Center as presented. 
 

Ms. Hadley noted that Council needed to take a formal vote on the clubhouse 
repair that was discussed the past week and several weeks prior to that. She 
said that they did not prepare a new and separate memo.  
 
Mr. McCarley said that he thought that was a building that was an asset and the 
building had more years to serve.  
 
Councilman Blair said that he was concerned about the time frame. He wanted to 
know when the road would be in place, the fence moved and the parking lot 
paved and landscaped. 
 
Mr. Nietupski said that the realignment project was virtually ready to go to bid.  
He said that they would realign Clubhouse Drive so that it would be more directly 
adjacent to the old facility. He said that the fence at the airport would be adjusted 
with that project. There were some elements of landscaping included with the 
road project because of its impact on the parking lot. The road would bisect the 
existing parking lot. 
 
Councilman Blair asked if the paving would be done at the same time as the 
road. Mr. Nietupski said yes. The paving of the road and the parking lot were 
under the same contract. He said that the scheduling would be worked out with 
the contractor. 
 
Mayor Kuykendall asked if the realignment of the road had been scheduled for 
many years. Mr. Nietupski said yes, the road project was the first thing to happen 
with regards to the area. The Airport found that by realigning the road they could 
have more leasable property for business development. Mayor Kuykendall asked 
if that would put anything to the North of Clubhouse Drive in the airport. He then 
asked if the fire station would be on the airport property. Ms. Hadley said that she 
did not believe that it would actually be on airport property. She said that it would 
be on City owned property.  

 
Mr. Vardamin said that the fire station was still on airport property which was part 
of the Federal Aviation Administration. He said that it was within the fence and 
had frontage that went out to the street. 
  
Councilman Lamerson noted that the community had more to infrastructure than 
just roads and sewer lines. There was also character infrastructure. He noted 
that the City fixed the Elks Opera House and the library, held on to the rodeo 
grounds and were fixing up the lakes. He said that this was one of those things 
that needed to be fixed.  
 



Prescott City Council  
Joint Workshop/Special Meeting – February 1, 2011                                           Page 16 
 

Councilwoman Suttles noted that there was $5 million set up for the Conference 
Center Reserve Fund. She asked Mr. Woodfill to explain where that money came 
from. Mr. Woodfill said that the money was part of their Capital Improvement 
Fund which could be used for improved City capital infrastructure or for economic 
development.  When the commitment was made by the Council, they separated 
$5 million out and reserved it for that contract.  

 
Councilwoman Suttles asked how the City acquired the $5 million. Mr. Woodfill 
said that it was acquired from the sale of unneeded City assets as well as excess 
sale tax collections above the budgeted amounts in prior years. He said that it 
took a lot of years to collect it.  
 
Ms. Hadley said that last week they were told the facility would become a 
General Fund asset and all of the funds generated by that facility would go back 
into the Capital Improvement Fund. She said that the Council got caught on that 
because when they first discussed it, they had hoped to do all kinds of things at 
the golf course. When they got down to it, they found that it would cost a lot more 
money than they had in the budget. She said that once they started pulling up 
carpet, they knew that they had to put some money in to it if they wanted to keep 
it. If they were requiring other businesses to make sure about grease traps, and 
asbestos, and ADA requirements, the City needed to do them as well.   
 
Councilwoman Suttles said that she wanted to put the least amount of money 
into the Old Clubhouse to make it functional until they could do something else 
with it. She noted that it would be an absolute waste to leave the clubhouse 
empty. She said that they were looking at $108,800 for repairs. Ms. Hadley said 
that was correct, those were the hard costs. The labor from staff had not been 
included. Councilwoman Suttles asked if new employees would be hired to take 
care of the Old Clubhouse. Ms. Hadley said no. Councilwoman Suttles asked if 
she was going to purchase new furniture. Ms. Hadley said no, they would use the 
furniture that was previously there.  
 
Councilwoman Linn asked how many golf tournament events were held at the 
Old Clubhouse. Ms. Hadley said that the golf course had about 60 tournaments 
and other events were also held there like Contractors Association meetings.  
Councilwoman Linn asked where they would go if the City did not repair the 
Clubhouse. Mr. McCarley said that they would close the Manzanita Grille and 
lose revenue there. 
 
Councilwoman Linn said that she wanted to make sure that everyone knew that 
the golf course loans were being paid back to the City. Mr. Woodfill said that the 
total amount of the loan was around $3 million. The golf course was paying 
interest on that loan. They were not making any of the principal payments 
because they were still rebuilding.  
 



Prescott City Council  
Joint Workshop/Special Meeting – February 1, 2011                                           Page 17 
 

Councilwoman Linn noted that once they were made aware of the problems in 
the clubhouse and they did nothing, the City could be set up for liability issues 
and lawsuits because of that. Ms. Hadley said that was correct.  
 
Mayor Kuykendall said that they had all been very sensitive to public input and 
perception from a lot of people who they could not identify. He went back 
yesterday and in the last 30 days he had either personal phone calls from people 
who used their names and e-mails from people that used their names. He noted 
42 positive responses saying that the City was doing the right thing by saving the 
property. That was good enough for him. 
 
COUNCILWOMAN LINN MOVED TO AUTHORIZE STAFF TO EFFECTUA5TE 
THE NECESSARY REPAIRS FOR THE NORTH PRESCOTT EVENT CENTER 
AS PRESENTED; SECONDED BY COUNCILMAN BLAIR; PASSED 
UNANIMOUSLY. 
          

3.  Adjournment. 
 
There being no further business to be discussed the Special Meeting of 
February 1, 2011, adjourned at 5:13 p.m.  
 

 
________________________________ 

       MARLIN D. KUYKENDALL, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
______________________________ 
ELIZABETH A. BURKE, City Clerk 

 
 

CERTIFICATION 
 
I hereby certify that the foregoing minutes are a true and correct copy of the minutes of 
the Regular Voting Meeting of the City Council of the City of Prescott, Arizona held on 
the 1st day of February, 2011. I further certify the meeting was duly called and held and 
that a quorum was present. 
 
Dated this ____ day of ___________________, 2011. 
 
 AFFIX 
       CITY SEAL  
    
       ________________________________  

      ELIZABETH A. BURKE, City Clerk 


